
 

 

 

 
 
 

 
GREATER BRIGHTON ECONOMIC 

BOARD 
 

 
 
 
 

18 JULY 2017 
10.00AM 

 
 

COUNCIL CHAMBER, HOVE TOWN HALL, NORTON ROAD, HOVE, 
BN3 3BQ 

 
 

AGENDA



 

 

 
 



 

 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 
 

 
  

  
 
 
 
 
 

Title: Greater Brighton 
Economic Board 

Date: 18 July 2017 

Time: 10.00am 

Venue Council Chamber, Hove 
Town Hall, Norton Road, 
Hove, BN3 3BQ 

 Members: Councillors: Humphreys, 
Janio, Morgan, Parkin, Smith 
and Wall 

 Business Partners:  

Steve Allen, Trevor Beattie, 
Prof. Michael Davies, Prof. 
Debra Humphris, Nick Juba, 
Dean Orgill, Andrew Swayne 
and Peter Webb 

This Agenda and all accompanying reports are printed on recycled paper 

Contact: John Peel 
Democratic Services Officer 
01273 291058 
john.peel@brighton-hove.gov.uk 

 



 

 

 
 
  
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
  
 
 
 
 
 
 

Public Seating                                                                                        Public Seating

 
Councillor 
Theobald 

BHCC 

 
Councillor 

Morgan 
BHCC 

 
Geoff Raw 

CE- BHCC 
 

Councillor 
Humphreys 

WBC 
 

Alex Bailey 
CE- ADC/WBC 

 

Councillor 
Parkin 

ADC 
 

Martin Randall 
WBC/ADC 

 
Councillor 

Wall 
MSDC 

 
Kathryn Hall 

CE- MSDC 

Andrew 
Swayne 

Chairman- A&W 
Business 

Partnership 
 

Dean Orgill 
B&H Business 

Partnership 

 
Steve Allen 

C2C LEP 
 
 

Peter Webb 
CWS Partnership 

 
Prof. 

Humphris 
Vice-Chancellor 

UoBtn 
 

Prof. Davies 
Deputy Vice-

Chancellor UoSx 
 

Nick Juba 
FE Rep 

 
 

Trevor Beattie 
SDNPA 

 

Robert 
Cottrill 
CE- LDC 

Councillor 
Smith 

LDC 

 
Secretary  

 
 

Lawyer 
 
 

Nick Hibberd 
BHCC 

 
 

Andy Hill 
BHCC 

 
 

Max Woodford 
LDC 

 
 
 

Lynda Dine 
WBC/ADC 

 
 
 

Cath Goodall 

 
 
 
 

Amanda 
Menahem 

 
 

Jonathan 
Sharrock 

 
 

Caroline Wood 
 
 

Prof. Sue 
Baxter 

 

 

           
          Press 

Greater Brighton Economic Board 



GREATER BRIGHTON ECONOMIC BOARD 

 

 
 

AGENDA 
 

PART ONE Page 

 

1 APPOINTMENT OF CHAIR  

 

2 PROCEDURAL BUSINESS  

 (a) Declaration of Substitutes: Where Members of the Board are 
unable to attend a meeting, a designated substitute for that 
Member may attend, speak and vote in their place for that 
meeting. 

 
(b) Declarations of Interest:  

 
(a) Disclosable pecuniary interests not registered on the 

register of interests; 
(b) Any other interests required to be registered under the 

local code; 
(c) Any other general interest as a result of which a decision 

on the matter might reasonably be regarded as affecting 
you or a partner more than a majority of other people or 
businesses in the ward/s affected by the decision. 

 
In each case, you need to declare  
(i) the item on the agenda the interest relates to; 
(ii) the nature of the interest; and 
(iii) whether it is a disclosable pecuniary interest or some other 

interest. 
 

If unsure, Members should seek advice from the committee 
lawyer or administrator preferably before the meeting. 
 

(c) Exclusion of Press and Public: To consider whether, in view 
of the nature of the business to be transacted, or the nature of 
the proceedings, the press and public should be excluded from 
the meeting when any of the following items are under 
consideration. 

 
NOTE: Any item appearing in Part Two of the Agenda states in 
its heading the category under which the information disclosed 
in the report is exempt from disclosure and therefore not 
available to the public. 

 
A list and description of the exempt categories is available from the 
Secretary to the Board. 

 

 
 
 

 

 

 



GREATER BRIGHTON ECONOMIC BOARD 

 

3 MINUTES OF THE PREVIOUS MEETING 1 - 10 

 To consider the minutes of the previous meeting held on 25 April 
2017 

 

 

4 CHAIR'S COMMUNICATIONS  

 

5 GREATER BRIGHTON CITY REGION WORKSHOP 11 - 16 

 Report of the Chair, Greater Brighton Officer Programme Board  

 Contact Officer: Nick Hibberd Tel: 01273 293756  
 

6 UPDATE ON INVESTMENT PROGRAMME 17 - 26 

 Report of the Chair, Greater Brighton Officer Programme Board  

 Contact Officer: Nick Hibberd Tel: 01273 293756  
 

7 RAIL SOUTH 27 - 30 

 Report of the Chair, Greater Brighton Officer Programme Board  

 Contact Officer: Mark Prior Tel: 01273 292095  
 

8 ONE PUBLIC ESTATE 31 - 48 

 Report of the Chair, Greater Brighton Officer Programme Board  
 

9 UPDATE ON SCIENCE FESTIVAL  

 Presentation from Andrew Swayne  
 



GREATER BRIGHTON ECONOMIC BOARD 

 

 

The Board actively welcomes members of the public and the press to attend its meetings 
and holds as many of its meetings as possible in public.   
 
Agendas and minutes are published on the council’s website www.brighton-hove.gov.uk.  
Agendas are available to view five working days prior to the meeting date. 
 
Electronic agendas can also be accessed through our meetings app available through 
www.moderngov.co.uk 
 
Meeting papers can be provided, on request, in large print, in Braille, on audio tape or on 
disc, or translated into any other language as requested. 
 
For further details and general enquiries about this meeting contact John Peel, (01273 
291058, email john.peel@brighton-hove.gov.uk) or email democratic.services@brighton-
hove.gov.uk  
 

 
Date of Publication - Monday, 10 July 2017 

 

 
 

 
 

http://www.brighton-hove.gov.uk/
http://www.moderngov.co.uk/our-solutions/tablet-app-paperless-meetings
mailto:democratic.services@brighton-hove.gov.uk
mailto:democratic.services@brighton-hove.gov.uk




 
 

 
GREATER BRIGHTON ECONOMIC BOARD 

 
10.00am 25 APRIL 2017 

 
GORDON ROOM, WORTHING TOWN HALL, CHAPEL ROAD, WORTHING BN11 1HA 

 
MINUTES 

 
Present: Councillor Humphreys (Chair), Councillor Morgan, Councillor Parkin, Councillor 
Smith, G Theobald and Councillor Wall 
 
Business Partners: Steve Allen, Trevor Beattie, Sue Dare, Prof. M Davies, Prof. Humphris, 
Dean Orgill, Andrew Swayne and Peter Webb 
 

 
PART ONE 

 
 

29 PROCEDURAL BUSINESS 
 
29a Declarations of substitutes 
 
29.1 Sue Dare was present as substitute for Nick Juba. 

 
29.2 Steve Allen was present as substitute for John A. Peel 
 
29b Declarations of interests 
 
29.3 Dean Orgill declared a non-pecuniary interest in item 34 as a member of the European 

Structural Investment Fund Board. 
 

29.4 Prof Davies declared a non-pecuniary interest in item 34 as a member of the European 
Structural Investment Fund Board. 
 

29.5 Trevor Beattie declared a non-pecuniary interest in item 34 as a member of the 
European Structural Investment Fund Board. 

 
29c Exclusion of the press and public 
 
29.6 In accordance with Section 100A of the Local Government Act 1972 (“the Act”), the 

Board considered whether the public should be excluded from the meeting during 
consideration of any item of business on the grounds that it is likely in view of the 
business to be transacted or the nature of the proceedings, that if members of the public 
were present during it, there would be disclosure to them of confidential information as 
defined in Section 100A (3) of the Act. 
 

29.7 RESOLVED- That the press and public be excluded from the meeting during 
consideration of the items contained in Part Two of the agenda. 

 

1



 

 
 

GREATER BRIGHTON ECONOMIC BOARD 25 APRIL 2017 

30 MINUTES OF THE PREVIOUS MEETING 
 
30.1 RESOLVED- That the minutes of the previous meeting held on 31 January 2017 be 

approved and signed as the correct record. 
 
31 CHAIR'S COMMUNICATIONS 
 
31.1 The Chair provided the following Communications: 

 
“Many of you will be aware that John Peel is stepping down from the Coast to Capital 
Board.  This would, therefore, have been John’s last meeting with us but he is unable to 
attend today.  I’m sure all Board members will want to join me in placing on the record 
our thanks to John for his support and contributions; he has been instrumental to the 
success of the Board since its inception in 2014.  Steve Allen will join the Board as 
Coast to Capital’s representative.  Steve, who is Vice Chairman of the Coast to Capital 
Board, is here today and I’d like to take this opportunity to welcome Steve. 
I’m also sorry to report that this will be Thalia Liebig’s last meeting with us. Thalia has 
been the Business Manager for the Board since shortly after its inception and will be 
taking up a new position as Programme Manager for the One Public Estate Board.  
On behalf of the Board, I would like to offer her our collective thanks for all and wish her 
well for the future. 
This is Peter Webb’s first meeting as the Coastal West Sussex Partnership’s 
representative and so welcome Peter. 
Welcome also to Cllr Peter Lamb, Leader of Crawley Borough Council (seated in the 
public gallery) who is joining us again today as an observer.  You will have seen that, as 
part of the Operational Arrangements item, we will be asked to agree that Crawley 
Borough Council and Gatwick Airport Limited be formally invited to join the Board as 
constituent members.  Extending our membership and geographical remit presents us 
with tremendous opportunities in relation to economic regeneration and growth.  It will 
allow us to focus on the London-Gatwick-Brighton Growth Corridor, identified by Grant 
Thornton’s High Growth Index of Places as one of nine corridors in England to have 
been at the heart of growth over the last decade and likely to maintain a pivotal role in 
shaping growth in the future.  This will strengthen both our voice to Government and our 
case for continued investment – both public and private. 
The Greater Brighton Metropolitan College – or GB Met – was formally created on 01 
April, through the merger of City College Brighton and Northbrook College Sussex.  
There was a very positive celebration of the launch at the newly built – and Local 
Growth Fund funded – Construction Trades Centre on the 04 April.  GB Met – which 
operates across five campuses in Brighton, Shoreham and Worthing – offers a 
comprehensive range of qualifications for 16 year olds leaving school, full and part time 
courses for adults, apprenticeships, professional qualifications and university degrees.  
It teaches around 3,500 16-18 year olds, 7,500 adult learners, 1,000 undergraduates 
and 800 apprenticeships.  I’m sure that the Board will join me in congratulating Nick 
Juba, GB Met’s Chief Executive Officer and Sue Dare who is here as Nick’s substitute 
today. 
I wanted to bring to the Board’s attention our recent success in securing new Local 
Growth Fund funding – totalling over £58m – for eleven regeneration and infrastructure 
projects located across Greater Brighton.  Our Investment Programme is growing and, 
more importantly, it is delivering – unlocking much needed new homes, employment 
floorspace and jobs for our City Region”. 

2



 

 
 

GREATER BRIGHTON ECONOMIC BOARD 25 APRIL 2017 

 
31.2 Councillor Morgan expressed his thanks to Councillor Humphrey for his diligent 

chairmanship as of the Board for the past municipal year. Councillor Morgan noted 
some of the achievements and milestones achieved with Councillor Humphrey as Chair: 
the Board had continued to build and strengthen relationships both across and beyond 
the partnership, raising its profile and voice. Excellent progress had been made in 
delivering the City Region’s Investment Programme and securing over £58m in new 
Growth Deal funding to continue to grow the Programme - unlocking more new jobs, 
homes and employment floorspace across Greater Brighton. Ensuring that the Board 
was ready and able to quickly bid for new funding opportunities as and when these 
arise, by maintaining a live and prioritised project pipeline. Identifying, including through 
the development of the City Region’s devolution bid, priority projects and initiatives for 
Greater Brighton and taking steps to deliver these, including: Developing the City 
Region’s successful One Public Estate bid and creating the Greater Brighton Strategic 
Property Board; rolling-out the Greater Brighton Broadband Voucher Scheme, which 
installed over 1,000 vouchers; commencing work with the Department for International 
Trade, to develop a proactive Inward Investment Strategy for the City Region, and 
launching the Greater Brighton website. Furthermore, Councillor Morgan extended an 
invitation to all Board Members to attend a civic reception to celebrate the promotion of 
Brighton & Hove Albion on 14 May. 

 
32 GREATER BRIGHTON RESPONSE TO INDUSTRIAL STRATEGY GREEN PAPER 
 
32.1 The Board considered a report of the Chair, Greater Brighton Officer Programme Board 

that provided the Board with the City Region’s consultation response to the 
Government’s Building Our Industrial Strategy Green Paper. 
 

32.2 Nick Hibberd supplemented that officers had held meetings with the Department for 
Communities & Local Government (DCLG) the previous day and had received a very 
positive response in relation to the work the Board was undertaking on Smart Growth 
and City Ambassadors.  DCLG had arranged to visit the Region to undertake an 
intensive piece of work in those areas. 
 

32.3 Councillor Theobald welcomed the response but felt it could have addressed the 
severity of problems relating to rail travel between London and Brighton slightly more. 
Councillor Theobald stated that the route was one of the busiest in the country and a 
solution to the current situation was desperately needed. 
 

32.4 Prof Humphris stated that she welcomed the response to the consultation and the 
Southern Accelerator descriptive term. Prof Humphris stated that the key to devolution 
was outstanding civic leadership and universities driving innovation.  
 

32.5 Councillor Morgan noted that the Southern Accelerator had been his suggestion and 
reflected the importance of identity in order to compete with other devolved regions such 
as the Northern Powerhouse and Midlands Engine. Councillor Morgan stated that the 
Region had achieved much success but it was time to raise performance and the use of 
City Ambassadors and Town Halls would go some way toward that.  
 

3



 

 
 

GREATER BRIGHTON ECONOMIC BOARD 25 APRIL 2017 

32.6 Councillor Wall noted his support for the recommendations adding that it had never 
been a better time for the Region to move forward. Economic aspirations should 
continue to be made and the report needed to push the case for the Region forward. 
 

32.7 Sue Dare noted that page 37 of the agenda referenced the intention of Greater Brighton 
Metropolitan College to establish proposals for the creation of an Institute of Technology 
(IoT) and Board support for that would be welcome and the application would need to be 
made shortly. 
 

32.8 Andrew Swayne stated that the business community supported the approach and he felt 
the Southern Accelerator was a good step forward in terms of identity.  
 

32.9 Prof Davies relayed the support from the University of Brighton for the proposals. The 
University had submitted its own response to the Green Paper and he would be happy 
to share that with fellow Board Members.  
 

32.10 Councillor Parkin welcomed the report adding that it would be beneficial for government 
officials to meet the universities and business leaders during their scheduled visit.  
 

32.11 Councillor Smith stated that investment in infrastructure was key to the region and 
should form the central part of the devolution process.  
 

32.12 The Chair gave the following statement: 
 
“At our last meeting, we agreed to commission a short piece of work to demonstrate the 
economic impact of the rail disruption on the Greater Brighton economy.  This proved 
exceptionally difficult to do in a short space of time: the impacts vary by sector and by 
geography; it is hard to verify the correlations and causes, and; businesses and people 
are finding ‘work arounds’. 
Nonetheless, there is significant anecdotal evidence that the ongoing industrial action is 
having a harming effect on our residents’ wellbeing and livelihoods, on our businesses 
and on investor confidence.  I have therefore written, on behalf of the Board, to the 
Secretary of State for Transport to urge Government to do all that it can to encourage 
the relevant parties to work together to resolve the dispute expediently and ultimately 
move forward.  I also took the opportunity to reiterate the importance of the Brighton 
Mainline Upgrade project to increase capacity and reliability in the long-term, asking 
Government to recognise this critical route when setting its priorities for investment in 
the national rail network and associated infrastructure. 
I have also written to the National Infrastructure Commission to supplement the 
‘priorities map’ sent to them by the South East England Councils; outlining the 
importance of the Brighton Main Line, the M23 and Shoreham Port to the City Region 
economy. 
Brighton & Hove City Council, in consultation with Transport for the South East partners, 
is currently exploring and developing the Rail South proposals put forward by Cllr 
Warren Morgan at our last meeting.  We will be receiving a report on the proposals at 
our next meeting, in July 2017”. 
 

32.13 RESOLVED- That the Board give retrospective approval to the Consultation Response, 
which was submitted to Government on 17 April 2017 in line with its deadline. 

 

4



 

 
 

GREATER BRIGHTON ECONOMIC BOARD 25 APRIL 2017 

33 INNOVATION SOUTH 
 
33.1 The Board considered a presentation from Dave Cooper, Professor of Management and 

Economic Development and Head of Business School, University of Chichester that set 
out the focus and progress and emerging themes of Innovation South.  

 
34 EUROPEAN REGIONAL DEVELOPMENT FUND BUSINESS SUPPORT BID 
 
34.1 The Board considered a presentation that gave an overview of the objectives and 

ambition of the European Regional Development Fund Business Support Bid Priority 
Axis 3. 

 
35 UPDATE ON GREATER BRIGHTON INVESTMENT PROGRAMME AND LOCAL 

GROWTH FUND 
 
35.1 The Board considered a report of the Chair, Greater Brighton Officer Programme Board 

that provided a progress update on the Greater Brighton Investment Programme since 
the previous meeting on 31 January 2017. The report also provided an update on the 
Local Growth Fund (LGF) in relation to both the allocations made as part of round 3 of 
the Growth Deal and new bidding opportunities presented by the C2C LEP’s new six 
monthly call for growth projects financed from unallocated Growth Deal round 1 and 2 
funds. 
 

35.2 Councillor Parkin relayed to the Board that the redeveloped Town Hall in Adur would 
shortly be welcoming a new occupier thereby retaining 400 jobs in the area. 
 

35.3 Councillor Morgan welcomed the near completion of the Construction Trades Centre 
and thanked the Greater Brighton Metropolitan College for their investment. Councillor 
Morgan noted that whilst investment in high tech and innovations sectors should be 
welcomed, the importance of practical skills to the employment sector was just as 
important. 
 

35.4 Prof Humphris noted that the Advance Engineering Centre was close to completion and 
she hoped a future meeting of the Board could be held there.  
 

35.5 Steve Allen noted that there would shortly be another call for applications for £11m of 
unallocated and £16m of allocated funding. Steve Allen congratulated the Board for its 
readiness and how quickly work was progressed. 
 

35.6 RESOLVED- That the Board note the report. 
 
36 NEWHAVEN ENTERPRISE ZONE 
 
36.1 The Board considered a presentation from Peter Sharp, Regeneration Project Officer, 

Lewes District Council that provide an overview of regeneration, investment and growth 
in Newhaven. 
 

36.2 Steve Allen noted that the Newhaven area had declined as a town over the past two 
decades and the proposals represented a once in a generation opportunity to raise the 
profile of the region. Newhaven was one of just twelve enterprise zones in the country 

5



 

 
 

GREATER BRIGHTON ECONOMIC BOARD 25 APRIL 2017 

and was one of the granted asks of the City Deal. Steve Allen supplemented that the 
proposals were ahead of the curve and the improvement and innovation plan was ready. 
The next stage would be work on how to move things forward but there had been an 
immediate benefit demonstrated in the Eastside South and East Quay.  

 
36.3 Councillor Theobald welcomed the update and asked what ideas were being considered 

for improvements to transport infrastructure.  
 
36.4 Steve Allen responded that the development of Port Road was being pushed and as 

with any EZ, the main ask was unlocking barriers around the zone.  
 
36.5 Councillor Smith expressed his thanks to the Board as it had started the process for 

improvements to Newhaven. 
 
37 BRIGHTON CITY HALL PROPOSAL 
 
37.1 The Board considered a report of the Chair, Greater Brighton Officer Programme Board 

that summarised the emerging opportunities for a Brighton City Hall proposal in 
supporting business growth, promoting trade and attracting inward investment and 
requested endorsement for the proposal and the proposed expansion of the City 
Ambassador role. 
 

37.2 Andrew Swayne welcomed the proposals but cautioned that the limits of what was a 
listed building would represent a challenge.  
 

37.3 Councillor Parkin stated his support for the proposals noting that further consideration 
would be required for how delegates reached the Town Hall as there was significant 
traffic issues in the surrounding area, particularly at weekends. 
 

37.4 Prof Humphries welcomed the proposals adding that the location was ideal in 
representing the Greater Brighton region.  Prof Humphris added that detailed co-
ordination would be needed with all partners in relation to meeting delegates. 
 

37.5 Councillor Smith asked if any investigation on footfall in the area and a business case 
for the investment required in improving a semi-redundant building had been 
undertaken.  
 

37.6 Nick Hibberd replied that initial work had been undertaken including soft market testing 
that had received positive feedback. There was also a business case relating to capital 
investment considering how grant funding could be achieved and potential for borrowing 
against future revenue streams to enable renovation work. 
 

37.7 Councillor Theobald stated his agreement that the term ‘City Ambassador’ be used 
instead of Alderman as the latter was an antiquated title and not relevant to the 
proposed role. Councillor Theobald added that he believed the proposed City 
Ambassador should have a business or university background from within the Greater 
Brighton area. 
 

37.8 Prof Humphris stated that a lot could be learned from how Manchester had developed 
the role of its Town Hall. 

6



 

 
 

GREATER BRIGHTON ECONOMIC BOARD 25 APRIL 2017 

 
37.9 Dean Orgill stated that the proposals had been discussed by the Brighton Economic 

Partnership and had received unanimous support. There was a need for good quality 
office and meeting space in the area and the Town Hall would be a valuable focal point.  
 

37.10 RESOLVED- 
 
1) That the Board endorse both the Brighton City Hall proposal and the proposed 

expansion of the City Ambassador role, to include sector representation and business 
leaders from across the City Region. 
 

2) That the Board task the Greater Brighton Officer Programme Board (‘the Officer 
Programme Board’) to further explore and develop the opportunities presented by the 
Brighton City Hall proposal for the City Region, aligned to the worked currently 
underway to develop Greater Brighton’s strategic approach to Inward Investment & 
Trade. 

 
38 GREATER BRIGHTON ECONOMIC BOARD 2017/18 OPERATIONAL 

ARRANGEMENTS 
 
38.1 The Board considered a report of the Chair, Greater Brighton Officer Programme Board 

that set out its Operational Arrangements for 2017/18. 
 

38.2 Councillor Morgan stated that at one of his first meetings attending the Board, expansion 
and next steps had been extensively discussed and he was pleased that the Board had 
reached a position to begin discussions to invite Crawley Borough Council and Gatwick 
Airport Limited to formally join. As a major international airport and and the base of an 
economic powerhouse in Crawley, both would be a major asset to the Board and was a 
testament to the increasing importance the Board had. Councillor Morgan stated that he 
was very pleased to endorse the two invitations. 
 

38.3 Andrew Swayne concurred with the comments made by Councillor Morgan adding that it 
demonstrated the economic evolution of the Board.  
 

38.4 Prof Humphris welcomed the invitations to Crawley Borough Council and Gatwick 
Airport Limited that would be an enormous positive for the Board.  
 

38.5 Councillor Wall welcomed the proposals that demonstrated the scale of the ambition of 
the Board and how far it had come since its inception. Councillor Wall cautioned that 
expansion sometimes could bring unintended consequences and he was pleased that 
this issue had been considered in the report. Councillor Wall supplemented that he 
would like to see the new Chair of the Board take the case for Greater Brighton to 
central government that would require skilful and careful management and common 
unity and purpose from the wider Board membership.  
 

38.6 RESOLVED-  
 
That the Board: 
 

7



 

 
 

GREATER BRIGHTON ECONOMIC BOARD 25 APRIL 2017 

(1) Agree and secure the budgetary contributions sought to fund the cost of running 
the Board and delivering its workplan in 2017/18; 

 
(2) Note the current workplan and agree the projects/activities prioritised for funding; 
 
(3) Agree that Brighton & Hove City Council shall continue to act as Lead Authority for 

the Board in 2017/18; 
 
(4) Agree to formally invite Crawley Borough Council and Gatwick Airport Limited to 

become constituent members of the Board, joining the Greater Brighton Joint 
Committee and the Greater Brighton Business Partnership respectively, subject to 
both their agreement and formal ratification from the Board’s member 
organisations; 

 
(5) Agree the process by which the Chair of the Board shall be nominated for 2017/18; 
 
(6) Note the date by which the Lead Authority must be notified of all named substitutes 

and instruct any necessary actions within their respective organisations; 
 
(7) Note the date by which the lead authority must be notified of all nominations to the 

Greater Brighton Call-In Panel and instruct any necessary actions within their 
respective organisations, and; 

 
(8) Note that the Annual Report will be drafted for presentation to the Board at its first 

meeting in the new municipal year. 
 
39 PART TWO MINUTES OF THE PREVIOUS MEETING 
 
39.1 RESOLVED- That the Part Two minutes of the previous meeting held on 31 January 

2017 be approved and signed as the correct record. 
 
40 PART TWO PROCEEDINGS 
 
40.1 RESOLVED- That the Part Two minute item remains exempt from disclosure from the 

press and public. 
 
41 MATTERS ARISING 
 
41.1 Dean Orgill communicated to the Board that due to a change in his professional 

commitments, he would unfortunately be standing down as the Board’s representative to 
the European Structural Investment Fund (ESIF) Board. With Peter Davies the current 
vice-representative also standing down due to retirement, the Board would need to 
appoint a new representative and deputy to the ESIF Board.  
 

41.2 The Chair thanked Dean and Peter for their work as representatives to the ESIF Board 
and recommended to Board Members they consider new a new representative and 
deputy to be appointed at a later date that was agreed. 

 
 

The meeting concluded at 12.00pm 

8



 

 
 

GREATER BRIGHTON ECONOMIC BOARD 25 APRIL 2017 

 
Signed 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Chair 

Dated this day of  
 

9



10



GREATER BRIGHTON ECONOMIC 
BOARD 

Agenda Item 5 

 
 

Subject: Greater Brighton City Region Workshop 

Date of Meeting: 18 July 2017 

Report of: Chair, Greater Brighton Officer Programme Board 

Contact Officer: Name: Nick Hibberd Tel: 01273 293020 

 Email: Nick.hibberd@brighton-hove.gov.uk 

LA’s affected: All 

 
FOR GENERAL RELEASE  
 
 
1. PURPOSE OF REPORT AND POLICY CONTEXT 

 
1.1 On the 25th April 2017 the Greater Brighton Economic Board gave retrospective 

approval to the Greater Brighton response to the government’s Industrial 
Strategy. Following this submission officers from Brighton & Hove City Council 
have been talking to government about a City Region focused deep dive into the 
issues, challenges and economic opportunities in the Greater Brighton City 
Region. This report provides an update on these discussions and seeks Board 
support for the planned activities to raise the profile of the Greater Brighton City 
Region with government. 
 

2. RECOMMENDATIONS:  
 

2.1 That the Board approves the proposals for the Greater Brighton City Region 
Workshop and the associated work streams. 

 
3. CONTEXT/ BACKGROUND INFORMATION 

 
3.1 On the 23 January 2017, Government published its Building Our Industrial 

Strategy Green Paper and invited comments. On the 13th April 2017 the Greater 
Brighton response to the Economic Strategy was submitted to government. 

 
3.2 The Greater Brighton submission highlighted the need for ongoing investment in 

the South East region due to its strategically important role in the UK both in 
terms of its fiscal contribution to the exchequer and in the opportunities that it 
creates for increased economic activity. The term Southern Accelerator was 
coined within the document as an overarching vision for the region within which 
other structures, strategies and bids would sit. The Southern Accelerator is 
similar to that of the Northern Powerhouse and the Midlands engine in helping to 
frame future investment for growth. 
 

3.3 In April 2017 the Director for Economy Environment & Culture at Brighton & Hove 
City Council (BHCC) met with officers from the Department for Business Energy 
& Industrial Strategy (BEIS)/ CLG Cities and Local Growth Unit to explore 
opportunities for joint working as part of their work on the Industrial Strategy and 
with a particular focus on economic growth in the context of place. 
 

11

mailto:Nick.hibberd@brighton-hove.gov.uk


3.4 The initial areas of focus that government would like to consider are:- 
 
City Ambassadors & City Halls for Business (see previous report to the Board) 
Housing Growth Corridor 
Digital Growth 
University Driven Growth 
Creative Digital Growth 
Skills 
 

3.5 The Cities and Local Growth unit would like to take forward this work through a 
series of intensive workshop sessions to explore these themes drawing on the 
knowledge and expertise of senior leaders, government officials and businesses. 
The aim will be to agree areas of focus that would be of interest to government in 
taking forward the Industrial Strategy and which may lead to shared investment. 
 

3.6 The first of these interactions will take the form of a workshop over two days the 
autumn. Central government officials will be given a tour of key sites and will then 
move in to workshops comprising Greater Brighton Board Members, government 
officers, businesses and subject specialists. 
 

3.7 Greater Brighton Board members will be invited to attend and take part in this 
two-day event and subsequent meetings to determine the areas of focus for joint 
working and the potential for future government investment. 
 

4. ANALYSIS & CONSIDERATION OF ANY ALTERNATIVE OPTIONS 
 
4.1 On 31 January 2017 the Greater Board received a report on the work undertaken 

to update the Greater Brighton Devolution Bid however the pace at which new 
devolution deals are agreed has slowed dramatically since the initial agreements 
were made and it is evident from the emerging Industrial Strategy that 
government is considering new ways to engage with local government in 
delivering economic growth. 

 
4.2 The planned workshop with government is part of the refocused engagement 

between central and local government which aims to identify particular areas of 
need where government intervention will have the greatest impact. 

 
5. COMMUNITY ENGAGEMENT & CONSULTATION 

 
The planned activities with government over the coming months will be 
developed through a process of consultation with key agencies and businesses 
across the City Region. 

 
6.  CONCLUSION  

 
 
6.1 The Board is asked to note the planned activities with central government and 

support the work streams that arise from it. 
 
 
 
 

12



7. FINANCIAL & OTHER IMPLICATIONS: 

 
Financial Implications: 
 

7.1 The funds to support the work will be drawn from the 2017/18 Greater Brighton 
Operational Budget along with contributions in kind from Board members. The 
2017/18 Greater Brighton Operational Budget and contributions from members 
were reported to this Board on 25 April 2017. 

 
 Finance Officer Consulted: Rob Allen, Principal Accountant 
 Date: 05/07/17 
 

Legal Implications: 
 
7.2 There are no legal implications arising from this report 
   
 Lawyer Consulted: Alice Rowland, Head of Commercial Law 
 Date: 29/06/17 
 
 
 Equalities Implications: 
 
7.3      None identified. 
 
 Sustainability Implications: 
 
7.4      None identified 
 

Any Other Significant Implications: 
 
7.5      None identified 
 
 

SUPPORTING DOCUMENTATION 

 
Appendices: 
 
1.  Proposed Agenda for Greater Brighton City Region Workshop  
 
  
 
 

13



14



 

 
 

Appendix 1: Proposed Agenda for Greater Brighton City Region Workshop* 

 

 

 

Day 1 Theme  
 

Venue 

10:00 Registration 

BA i360 10:15 Welcome & introduction to the programme 
(Central Government Officers) 
 

10:45 Greater Brighton City Region from above Flight on BA i360 

11:15 City Region Tour 
(Central Government Officers) 

 

Seafront Infrastructure Investment 

- Site visit to Shelter Hall/A259 DfT funded 

infrastructure project 

Housing Delivery 

- Site visit to Kite Place Housing Development 

Local Growth Fund Project 

- Site visit to Circus Street Development 

 

 

12:30 Welcome from University of Brighton Vice 
Chancellor 
 

Advance Engineering 
Centre, University of 

Brighton 
 

13:00  Overview of the Greater Brighton City Region 

Economy 

– The Southern Accelerator, including; 

- Introduction to the city region and the work of 

the Greater Brighton Economic Board  

- Current investment programmes  

- Delivering the Industrial Strategy in the context 

of place  

- How government can support the city region 

economy  

14:30 Focus on Trade and Export  
- Business Ambassadors and City Halls for 

Business  
- UKTPO (University of Sussex UK Trade Policy 

Observatory ) 
- Coping in a Brexit Economy  

15:30 Review and close 

15



 

 
 

 

*All times indicative and subject to change 

Day 2 Theme  
 

Venue 

9:00 Registration – Welcome to Day Two 

 
Ricardo Centenary 
Innovation Centre 

9:30 
 
 

Focus on Infrastructure:  Housing Delivery and 
Transport Infrastructure 
Unlocking and accelerating delivery  
 
Focus on current housing delivery programmes 
including: 

- Joint Venture to deliver 1000 living rent homes 
- New Homes for Neighbourhoods programme  
- Greater Brighton One Public Estate 

Programme 

- Discussion on how we can accelerate delivery 
  

Focus on key transport priorities including: 
- Responding to clean air and new technologies 

including multi-operator ticketing  
- Rail, bus and road investment  
- Transport for the South East 

 

11:15 
 

Focus on University Driven Growth  
Knowledge intensive growth:  

- Advanced Engineering  
- Life & Health Sciences / Bio Innovation 
- Quantum Technologies  

 

12:30  
 

Lunch and optional tour of the facility 
 

13:30 Bus ride to the Digital Catapult Centre 
 

 

14:00 
 

Briefing on the Digital Catapult Centre and the 5G 
testbed including: 

- Plans for the space that is under construction 
- Project partners 
- Work to support SME’s and larger businesses 

New England House 

14:30 Digital Growth  
- Focus on the Creative Digital Cluster in 

Brighton 
- Brighton Digital Catapult 
- 5G test bed for SMEs  
- Virtual Reality demonstration  

15:30 Reflections on the two day programme & next steps 
 

16:00 Close 

16



GREATER BRIGHTON ECONOMIC 
BOARD 

Agenda Item 6 

 
 

Subject: Progress update on Greater Brighton Investment 
Programme 

Date of Meeting: 18 July 2017 

Report of: Chair, Greater Brighton Officer Programme Board 

Contact Officer: Name: Nick Hibberd Tel: 01273 293756 

 Email: Nick.hibberd@brighton-hove.gov.uk 

LA(s) affected: All 

 
 
FOR GENERAL RELEASE 
 
 
1. PURPOSE OF REPORT AND POLICY CONTEXT 
 
1.1 This report provides the Greater Brighton Economic Board (“the Board”) with an 

update on progress on the Greater Brighton Investment Programme (“the 
Investment Programme”) since the Board’s last meeting on 25 April 2017. 

 
1.2 Updates are included on the Local Growth Fund (LGF) allocations made as part 

of the Growth Deal Round 3, and the progress of projects awarded unallocated 
monies from Growth Deal Rounds 1 & 2. 
 

1.3 The period covered by this report is 21 March 2017 to 21 June 2017. 
 
2. RECOMMENDATIONS:  
 
2.1 That the Board note the report. 
 
 
3. GREATER BRIGHTON INVESTMENT PROGRAMME HIGHLIGHTS 
  
  Enterprise Zone (Newhaven) 
 
3.1 The formal invitation-only launch event for the Newhaven Enterprise Zone was 

held on Monday 26th June at the UTC@harbourside. The event was highly 
successful, with around 70 local dignitaries, businesses and partners attending, 
including Maria Caulfield MP. Attendees heard from a range of speakers, 
including Steve Allen (Vice Chair of Coast to Capital LEP), Cllr Andy Smith 
(Leader of Lewes District Council) and Chris Rasmussen of Brightwell 
Dispensers (one of Newhaven’s largest employers and have recently taken on 
new space within the Enterprise Zone). 
 

3.2 Work has commenced on both East Quay (the Rampion Offshore Wind Farm 
O&M base) and the new business park at Eastside South. LDC has completed 
the purchase of Railway Quay from a private landowner and has commissioned 
consultants to undertake a market demand study looking at options for new 
development (due to report back end of June). 

17



 
3.3 A bid has been submitted to the Government’s Commercial Support Fund to 

investigate ground conditions and constraints on part of the Avis Way site, with a 
decision expected in the next couple of months. 
 
New England House Growth Centre (Brighton) 

 
3.4 A draft scoping paper for moving the project forward has been prepared and 

options for the refurbishment and expansion of New England House are currently 
being costed.  With regard to replacing the building’s curtain walling, a modular 
approach is being explored that would allow recladding works to take place whilst 
minimising disruption to existing tenants. 

 
3.5 The council is considering how it might progress a combined development of 

New England House and the adjacent Longley Industrial Estate in order to  
facilitate achieving the City Deal outputs for New England House. The draft 
scoping paper will be considered by the council later this summer. 
 
Digital Catapult Centre and 5G Testbed (Brighton) 
 

3.6 Building work continues on the catapult centre and 5G testbed in New England 
House and the satellite hub at the University of Brighton. The beta version of the 
5G testbed is due to launch in the autumn. 
 

3.7 The current catapult residency programme, which focussed on Immersive 
Technologies (virtual and augmented realities), is coming to its final phase and 
has enabled a number of innovators to develop and grow commercially, including 
Fracture, Circa69, Gorilla in the Room, Big Man, Ram Jam, Chromaspace and 
Ionasphere. The next residency programme launches in September. 
 

3.8 An agreement to extend the digital catapult centre contract to 2020 to cover the 
5G work has been approved and discussions are also underway to extend the 
main contract beyond March 2018 to support further activity, including the 
Hannington Lane retail tech project. 
 
Advanced Engineering Centre (Brighton) 
 

3.9 The construction of the Advanced Engineering Building and surrounding 
landscaping is now complete and work will continue over the summer with 
internal fit-out of the workshops and installation of specialist equipment in the 
research areas. The formal opening is expected during the first week of 
September to coincide with the British Science Festival. 
 
Innovation Centre, Block J (Brighton) 
 

3.10 The construction of the Innovation Centre building at Block J at Brighton Station 
is ongoing with the initial build expected to be completed this summer. The hotel 
will be completed simultaneously. 
 
 
 
 

18



Circus Street Innovation Growth Centre and Regeneration (Brighton) 
 

3.11 Land transaction and legal agreements are nearing completion, with the revised 
Development Agreement between Cathedral (Brighton) and the council expected 
to go unconditional in early July. 
 

3.12 At the time of writing, the construction contractor is mobilising on-site to 
commence piling works, prior to construction of the student housing and 
residential blocks commencing in the late summer/early autumn. 
 

  Preston Barracks Central Research Laboratory (Brighton) 
 

3.13 Having submitted the detailed planning application in February 2017, the 
University of Brighton and U+I Plc are currently engaged in discussions with the 
Local Planning Authority (LPA), and are responding to feedback received to date. 
The consultation period, which had been extended following requests from a 
number of statutory consultees, has now closed.  
 

3.14 The LPA continues to inform the applicants of issues to be addressed and further 
meetings between the applicants and the LPA are planned. Subject to the 
satisfactory conclusion of this work and any revisions to the proposals, it is hoped 
that the application will be determined at Planning Committee in autumn 2017. If 
all goes to plan, and the Planning Agreement and land transactions are 
completed before the end of the year, it is anticipated that construction will 
commence in early 2018.  
 
Construction Trades Centre, City College (Brighton) 
 

3.15 The Construction Trades Centre building is complete and was handed over to the 
College at the end of March.  The College is now undertaking internal fit-out and 
decanting of the current provision from the Pelham site to allow the new facilities 
to be fully operational for the 2017/18 academic year. 

 
Valley Gardens – Phases 1 and 2 (Brighton) 
 

3.16 The Technical Highway Design is being progressed by Project Centre - the 
principle highway designers for this project. The Lighting Strategy and 
Sustainable Urban Drainage work is under way. The Signage Strategy and the 
vertical alignment drawings will be developed over the coming months. 
Contractors have been commissioned to develop traffic management plans for 
the construction phase of the scheme and a draft phasing plan is to be issued at 
the end of June. 
 

3.17 Early engagement with the City Safety Action Group and bus operators has 
commenced to support development of the draft phasing plans. Site investigation 
surveys will be commissioned in July to identify underground risks and other 
potential obstructions, alongside detailed Statutory Undertaker investigations.  
The Traffic Regulation Order for the parking and traffic management 
arrangements is being advertised. 
 

3.18 Untitled Practice, the appointed Landscape Architects, have been working on the 
preliminary green space design in response to the design brief developed in 

19



conjunction with the City Parks, Property & Design and Events teams.   The 
design was presented to the Environment, Sustainability and Transport 
Committee on 27th June. Consultants will be tasked with progressing the 
approved design to detailed design phase and commencing the planning 
application process. It is anticipated that both the detailed green space and 
highway designs will be presented at Committee during Autumn 2017, when the 
preferred procurement route for the scheme will also be recommended. 

 
Bike Share Scheme (Brighton & Hove) 
 

3.19 Rollout of bike share hub sites was scheduled to commence on 3rd July 2017.  A 
further three sites requiring Traffic Regulation Orders and 19 sites requiring 
Highway Licences were advertised through to 2nd June, with no objections 
received. Discussions with BHCC’s planning department are continuing to 
facilitate rapid roll out of the scheme and resolve uncertainties over permitted 
development rights and the need for Lawful Development Certificates where sites 
are on private land.  
 

3.20 The official launch of the scheme is now due to take place in September 2017. 
 

3.21 Members of the public will have had the chance to see and ride Brighton & 
Hove’s new share bike at BHT’s Around the World Cycle Challenge on 25 June 
charity event in Preston Park Velodrome, the first public promotion of the scheme 
since the Operator was appointed. 

 
Intelligent Transport Systems Package (Brighton & Hove) 
 

3.22 The upgrades to the traffic signal pedestrian crossings at the eleven junctions are 
all complete. The CCTV installations are also underway and a new contract is 
due to go out to tender for the bus lane enforcement cameras. The journey time 
monitors are now installed and are in testing mode. Further planning is required 
for the VMS signs. 
 
Flood Alleviation Scheme (Newhaven) 
 

3.23 A substantial section of the scheme build on the west bank of the Ouse has been 
completed including more than 300m of new earth embankment, a flood wall and 
a flood gate in a public park. Unexpected ground conditions in a section of the 
west bank defence adjacent to Denton Island bridge have resulted in delays in 
building 200m of flood wall. Despite this, completion is expected by late summer 
2017. 
 

3.24 The building of the flood wall on the east bank of the Ouse north of the swing 
bridge has commenced. Work on sections of the wall south of the swing bridge 
into the Port area of Newhaven will start this summer. Engagement with statutory 
stakeholders in the Port area over the detailed design for defences on 
operational land continues. The aim is to minimise the impact on businesses, 
port operations and rail assets. 
 

3.25 Preparatory work has started on flanking embankments between the A26 and the 
Energy Recovery Facility that will protect Newhaven from ‘back door’ flooding. 
This is currently focussed on Great Crested Newt mitigation. Regular meetings 

20



with Network Rail asset protection staff continue regarding the development of 
the flood gate across the railway line north of Newhaven. 

 
Port Access Road (Newhaven) 
 

3.26 Development of the business case for the second phase of the Port Access Road 
(from Pargut roundabout to Mill Creek) continues. As a retained scheme, 
discussions have been ongoing with the Department for Transport (DfT) to agree 
the required scope of the business case and there is now agreement that this 
should focus on the economic benefit of the scheme. Draft business case 
documents will continue to be submitted to DfT for comment. 
 

3.27 The site works for additional ground investigation have now been completed and 
this information will now inform the detailed design of the embankments and 
bridge which is also underway, although there have been some delays. A 
package of works for advance site clearance and translocation of species is 
being put together for completion ahead of main construction. Construction of the 
scheme will be procured using Hampshire County Council’s framework contract 
and a further tender workshop is planned to gain construction input into the 
design. Following the tender process and receipt of a tendered sum, final 
submission of the business case is planned for summer 2017.  Subject to the 
approval of the business case, construction could commence in early 2018, with 
completion in 2019. 
 
Adur Tidal Walls (Shoreham-By-Sea) 
 

3.28 The construction of two new flood defence embankments has commenced in 
Shoreham. Works are substantially complete at two of the project’s ten reaches, 
with finishing works now underway on Reach E1. Reach W2 (Emerald Quay) is 
the fifth reach to have commenced on the project, where new flood glass is to be 
installed. Works adjacent to Shoreham Airport (Reach W7) have been re-
programmed to commence in 2018. 

 
Western Harbour Arm Flood Defence (Shoreham-By-Sea) 
 

3.29 Negotiations continue on the purchase of a strip of land along the northern 
frontage of the Sussex Yacht Club's site.  
 

3.30 Adur District Council is currently commissioning a study to carry out detailed 
flood risk analysis to provide the justification needed for further investment from 
the Environment Agency’s capital programme. The Council has received detailed 
designs for the proposed flood wall, and is discussing the design of the new 
clubhouse with the yacht club through pre-application negotiations. 
 

3.31 Two separate planning applications for the replacement clubhouse and flood 
defence scheme will be submitted in autumn 2017, and construction of the 
clubhouse element is likely to commence in early 2018, with completion in early 
2020. The flood defence wall will follow immediately thereafter. 
 
 
 

 

21



Growth Location (Burgess Hill) 
 

3.32 Mid Sussex District Council (MSDC) submitted its District Plan to Government in 
August 2016. The Plan provides the framework for the Burgess Hill 
developments and is currently being subjected to an independent examination by 
the Planning Inspectorate.  The first sets of hearings have been completed and 
further hearings are scheduled for July. 
 

3.33 The Northern Arc scheme, which will deliver up to 3,500 new homes alongside a 
business park, schools and community facilities, remains a key focus for MSDC. 
Further progress has been made to address outstanding issues and regular 
discussions are being held with developers to progress the scheme.  A planning 
application for the first 130 homes on the development has been received and 
pre-application discussions regarding a further 320 homes have been held. 
 

3.34 Good progress has been made on the approved major retail, leisure and housing 
scheme to redevelop Burgess Hill town centre with the developers, New River 
Retail, expected on site later this year with the scheme due to complete by 
2020/21.The construction on the Kings Way and Keymer Tileworks sites also 
continues apace with both developments now starting to be occupied. 
 

3.35 Work continues on The Brow to convert a number of public sector buildings into a 
modern, purpose-built public service facility to house a GP surgery and 
accommodation for the police and ambulance services, whilst freeing up land to 
provide a significant number of homes to aid regeneration of the town centre. 
The HCA has commissioned architects and planning consultants who have 
produced a high level design and viability assessment. MSDC continues to work 
with partners and the HCA to agree an implementation plan for this project. 
 

3.36 An external design agency has been appointed to support work on a Burgess Hill 
brand and outreach communications strategy. Initial workshops have been held 
with key political stakeholders and the intention is to work in partnership with the 
various developers active in the town, along with other stakeholders, to promote 
and support its role as a growth location and to provide high quality information to 
existing and future residents, employees and visitors. 

 
A2300 Corridor Improvements (Burgess Hill) 
 

3.37 This Department of Trade retained major scheme will support economic growth, 
by enabling the delivery of strategic housing and employment development at 
Burgess Hill. The funding profile has been aligned with the development profile 
currently being proposed by developers. 
 

3.38 Preliminary design is expected to be complete by Autumn 2017, followed by 
preparation of the outline transport business case, expected to be completed by 
Spring 2018. The current programme indicates a start of construction in Winter 
2020, with completion in Spring 2022. 

 
 
 
 
 

22



4. UPDATE ON LOCAL GROWTH FUND PROJECTS (ROUND 3) 
 
4.1 On 02 February 2017, the C2C LEP announced that it has secured £66m 

through Round 3 of the Growth Deal. Subject to the required funding 
agreements, all six projects put forward by the Board were allocated funding - 
totalling £48.77m – updates as follows. 
 
Worthing Central Phase 1 (Worthing) - £5.6m 

 
4.2 The award of Growth Deal funding has helped to facilitate further negotiations 

between the main site owner (of Teville Gate) and the owner of Teville Gate 
House. Recent meetings have explored the option of a development agreement 
to secure implementation of a phased development for both sites. Work is 
ongoing on the main site to bring forward a planning application in the autumn 
(2017). 
 

4.3 Negotiations continue with the land owner at Union Place in order to bring 
forward a mixed use scheme, including a multiplex cinema. 
 
Decoy Farm (Worthing) - £4.8m 
 

4.4 Engagement with potential occupiers/developers is helping to inform the most 
appropriate remediation strategy for the site. West Sussex County Council is to 
assist with the preparation of a Transport Assessment; expected by Summer 
2017. This will help inform further studies and support a planning application for 
the site. 
 
New Monks Farm & Airport (Shoreham-By-Sea) - £5.7m 
 

4.5 The developers for New Monks Farm and Shoreham Airport are preparing to 
submit planning applications by end of July 2017. The developers held various 
consultation events at the end of January 2017. IKEA's interest in the site has 
been confirmed and the public has now seen the master-plan showing the large 
IKEA store (35,000sqm). A detailed business case is being developed for 
submission to the LEP in the autumn. 
 
Growth Location (Burgess Hill) - £14.9m 
 

4.6 In order to assist with the delivery of the infrastructure required to realise the full 
benefits of the substantial growth anticipated in Burgess Hill, MSDC submitted a 
bid to Coast to Capital for Local Growth Fund 3 funds.  The bid was primarily to 
support a sustainable transport package that would link together new and 
existing developments and improve the experience of travelling to and around 
Burgess Hill and has been awarded £14.9m.  WSCC has now appointed 
consultants to undertake the work required to develop a detailed package of 
sustainable transport measures. 
 
See 3.32 to 3.36. 
 
 
 
 

23



Sussex Bio-Innovation Centre (Brighton) - £5.5m 
 

4.7 Detailed building designs have been completed for the entire new Life Sciences 
Teaching & Research Building including the Bio-Innovation Centre.  Planning 
consent has recently been received and the project is at procurement stage to 
select the main contractor, with work expected to begin onsite in early 2018. 

 
Black Rock Development (Brighton) - £12.1m 

 
4.8 Negotiations to finalise the Conditional Land Acquisition Agreement have been 

progressing well since the New Year and are anticipated to complete by the end 
of July.  An outline business case has been submitted to the C2C LEP and this 
will be reviewed by the LEP Board and the Project Team at their meeting on 14th 
July.   A revised timeline for the project assumes enabling works at Black Rock 
begin in early 2019 with the design & build process beginning mid-2020. 

 
 
5. UPDATE ON LGF PROJECTS (UNALLOCATED FUNDS ROUNDS 1 & 2) 
 
5.1 In December 2016, the C2C LEP announced that it had approximately £46.65m 

of unallocated funds available to support capital growth projects. The Greater 
Brighton Board put forward eight bids, five of which received funding totalling 
approximately £9.9m, subject to the relevant funding agreements. Updates are 
as follows: 
 
Adur Civic Centre (Shoreham-By-Sea) - £1.8m 
 

5.2 Demolition of the main building is complete and the contractors have handed the 
site back to the Council. Architects are being commissioned to prepare 
development options for the main site. 
 

5.3 The Council has entered into a pre-contract services agreement through SCAPE 
Framework, which will enable on site investigations and the submission of a 
planning application by the end of July for the north (car park) site. A public 
consultation event is planned for 26th June 2017. 

 
Springman House (Lewes) - £2m 
 

5.4 Local Growth Funding enabled Lewes District Council (LDC) to purchase the 
Springman House site, located in the North Street Quarter development, in 
March 2017. This project, which provides for the relocation of the fire station, will 
unlock the £150 million North Street Quarter regeneration scheme.  This is a 
major mixed-use development in Lewes that will deliver significant benefits, 
including 416 new homes, 13,000 square metres of commercial floorspace, new 
flood defences and a new health centre. Following the purchase of the site, LDC 
is to commission the design and construction of the new facility, which also 
provides an opportunity to work with Sussex Police to co-locate blue light 
services in the town.  It is expected that the new fire station will be operational by 
March 2020. 
 
 
 

24



Railway Quay (Newhaven) - £1.5m 
 
See 3.1-3.3. 
 
Eastside South (Newhaven) - £1.6m 
 
See 3.1-3.3. 
 
Royal Pavilion Exchange – Corn Exchange & Studio Theatre (Brighton) - £3m 
 

5.5 Following appointment of the main contractor, R. Durtnell & Sons Ltd, works 
started on site on 13 February 2017.  A revised planning permission including all 
design revisions was granted on 24 January 2017 and the accompanying listed 
building application was issued on 17 February 2017. Associated conditions are 
now being addressed. The LEP funding of £3milion supports the agreed funding 
model to ensure that the full scope of works can be delivered. On-going 
coordination and discussions with Brighton Dome & Brighton Festival, and the 
main contactor are focused on mitigating local disruption and facilitating the 
continued use of the Concert Hall during the works period, which are 
programmed to be completed in Autumn 2018. 
 
 

6.        FINANCIAL & OTHER IMPLICATIONS: 
 

Financial Implications: 
 

6.1 There are no direct financial implications associated with this report regarding the 
progress made in the last quarter of this financial year on approved schemes 
within the Greater Brighton Investment Programme. Schemes already included 
within the Greater Brighton Investment Programme have approved business 
cases in place with funding options identified and these have been reported to 
their respective bodies. Future or revised business plans will be reported 
accordingly within the timescales of the project timetables. 

 
6.2 Subject to funding agreements, the C2C LEP have also announced funding of 

£48.77m toward all six of the projects put forward by the Board as shown in 
paragraphs 4.1 to 4.8. Further work will be required to identify the match funding 
requirements for these projects and will be reported back to this board in due 
course. 

 
6.3 The C2C LEP have awarded a total of £9.9m of unallocated Rounds 1 and 2 

Local Growth Funding toward the five projects detailed in paragraphs 5.1 to 5.5, 
subject to funding agreements. It should be noted that all projects will require a 
degree of match funding; this will be reported back to this board in due course. 

 
 Finance Officer Consulted: Rob Allen, Principal Accountant 
 Date: 05/07/17 
 
 
 
 
 

25



Legal Implications: 
 
6.4 There are no legal implications arising directly from this report. The legal 

implications of the projects will be considered by the member authorities 
involved. 

 
 Lawyer Consulted: Alice Rowland, Head of Commercial Law 
 Date: 29/06/2017 
 
 Equalities Implications: 
 
6.5 None arising from this report. Equalities issues will be addressed on a project-by-

project basis. 
 
 Sustainability Implications: 
 
6.6 None arising from this report. Sustainability issues will be addressed on a 

project-by-project basis. 
 

Any Other Significant Implications: 
 
6.7 None. 
 
 
 

SUPPORTING DOCUMENTATION 

 
Appendices: 
 
None  
  
 
Background Documents 
 
None 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

26



GREATER BRIGHTON ECONOMIC 
BOARD 

Agenda Item 7 

 
 

Subject: Rail South 

Date of Meeting: July 2017 

Report of: Chair, Greater Brighton Officer Programme Board 

Contact Officer: 
Name: 

Mark Prior, Assistant 
Director, City Transport 

Tel: 01273 292095 

 Email: Mark.prior@brighton-hove.gov.uk 

LA’s affected: All  

 
FOR GENERAL RELEASE.    
 
1. PURPOSE OF REPORT AND POLICY CONTEXT 
 
1.1 The report outlines the options available to the Greater Brighton Economic Board 

(GBEB) in securing greater influence over rail infrastructure investment and rail 
franchising in the Region by working with and through the emerging Sub National 
Transport Body, Transport for the South East. 

 
2. RECOMMENDATIONS:  
 
2.1 That members of the Board support the proposal to develop a “Rail South” model 

as a workstream under the emerging Sub National Transport Body, Transport for 
South East 

 
2.2 That  the Board use their positions on the Shadow Board of SNTB Transport for 

the South East to ensure; 

 The development of a Rail Strategy as part of the SNTB Transport 
Strategy 

 The prioritisation of Brighton Main Line Upgrade project by Network Rail 
early in the next Control Period (CP6: 2019-2024) 

 The prioritisation of other rail improvements and regional connections 
including those centred on Lewes – Uckfield, and connecting the Region 
to other areas of the South East including Heathrow.   

 
3. CONTEXT/ BACKGROUND INFORMATION 
 
3.1 Rail is of great strategic importance to the Greater Brighton City Region. The 

Region needs a rail service it can rely on, that delivers for commuters, for tourists 
and for business. An efficient and reliable service is critical to maintaining the 
Regions’ competitiveness, driving its economic growth and boosting employment. 
 

3.2 The rail network infrastructure in the Region is, however, not fit for purpose and 
the Brighton Main Line in particular has suffered from long-standing capacity and 
reliability issues. 
 

3.3 Train services on the Brighton Main Line are among the busiest in the country, 
while levels of on-time performance are among the lowest nationally, a situation 
exacerbated in the past 18 months by the industrial action on Southern Services. 

27

mailto:Mark.prior@brighton-hove.gov.uk


Progress is urgently needed on the Brighton Main Line Upgrade project to 
increase capacity and reliability in the long-term, providing the infrastructure not 
just to support planned growth but to transform the Greater Brighton economy.  
 

3.4 Members of the GBEB have expressed a desire to have greater control and 
influence over the levels and timings of rail infrastructure investment in the Region 
and over the award of franchises operating within the Region. It has been 
suggested that one way to do this would be to establish a rail partnership body - 
“Rail South” - following the example of Rail North. 
 

3.5 The Cities and Local Government Devolution Act makes provision for the 
establishment and constitution of a Sub National Transport Body (SNTB) for any 
area in England (outside of Greater London). The establishment of a SNTB 
provides an opportunity to develop a strong strategic partnership and a Transport 
Strategy for the wider South East regional area. 
 

3.6 The first meeting of the Shadow SNTB was held on 26th June 2017, attended by 
Leaders and Lead Members of the Constituent Authorities including Brighton & 
Hove City Council, East & West Sussex, Surrey, Hampshire County Councils, 
Medway, Isle of Wight, Southampton and Portsmouth Councils and Coast to 
Capital and Solent LEPs with DfT observing. At this meeting Cllr Warren Morgan 
outlined the importance of Rail to the South East and City Region, giving it equal 
priority to roads within the Transport Strategy development process and further 
outlined a proposal for the new Body to support his proposal for a “Rail South” 
model to deliver improvements in franchises and rail services for commuters 
through a formal engagement structure with the DfT, Network Rail and Rail 
Operators.  

 
4. ANALYSIS & CONSIDERATION OF ANY ALTERNATIVE OPTIONS 
 
4.1 Opportunities exist for the GBEB, through its constituent members, to be more 

closely involved in influencing rail franchises and rail network infrastructure 
programmes in the region.  Involvement in the process of appointing a new train 
operator for the routes currently run by Southern GTR, on future service delivery 
and standards of operation could be gained through;  

 

 The new DfT initiative, operating currently in new South Eastern 
franchise area, whereby Local Transport Authorities are embedded in 
DfT franchise teams 

 Working with, and through, the Sub National Transport Body 
(Transport for the South East) which is currently being established to 
ensure that the rail priorities of the Greater Brighton City Region are 
included and prioritised within the SNTBs Transport Strategy. The 

SNTB would become a statutory partner in rail investment 
processes. 

 
4.2 The GBEB and its constituent Local Authorities could continue present channels 

of lobbying government for improvements but this is unlikely to see the step 
change required to meet the regions’ needs. Working through the statutory 
instrument of the SNTB will provide significantly more influence on future Rail 
investment and franchising.  
 

28



4.3 The GBEB and its constituent Local Authorities could seek to establish a smaller 
and/or independent Rail body operating outside of the SNTB and focused 
specifically on the rail network within the Region. Such a body would, however, 
have no statutory basis and would lack the influence of a SNTB. Rail North was 
created prior to the emergence of SNTB Transport for the North (TfN), predating 
the Cities and Local Government Devolution Act and is now planned to be 
integrated into TfN once it gains statutory status. A more effective solution would 
be to follow the example of Rail North and site such a body within the wider Sub 
National Body.  

 
5. COMMUNITY ENGAGEMENT & CONSULTATION 
 
5.1 Consultation at various levels will take place as part of the establishment of the 

SNTB. This consultation will include consultation on the SNTBs Transport 
Strategy which will include Rail priorities and proposals.  

 
6. CONCLUSION  
 

As previously outlined in the report to this Board in January 2017, the SNTB will 
be the main mechanism available to the GBEB to influence and prioritise 
investment by the major national transport agencies including Network Rail.  

 
The SNTB offers the best mechanism for the GBEB and its constituent members 
to influence rail investment and franchise arrangements within the Region.    

 
7. FINANCIAL & OTHER IMPLICATIONS: 

 
Financial Implications: 

 
7.1 There are no additional financial implications associated with this report. 

 
7.2 A £0.020m contribution to the work of the SNTB, to develop constitutional 

arrangements and a Transport Strategy has previously been approved from 
existing Brighton and Hove City Council revenue budgets.  
 

7.3 There may be officer time and other costs for the each of the constituent local 
authorities to be represented on the SNTB and for specific work on issues related 
to Rail as the SNTB and its Strategy develops.  Any cost associated with officer 
time will be met from existing revenue budgets. 

 
 Finance Officer Consulted: Rob Allen, Principal Accountant  
 Date: 05/07/17 
 

Legal Implications: 
 
7.4 There are no direct legal implications arising from this report. As set out in the 

report, the Cities and Local Government Devolution Act 2016 allows the 
Secretary of State to make Regulations to establish a SNTB as a corporate body 
for any area in England outside Greater London. The constituent authorities of 
the proposed SNTB are required to submit a proposal to the Secretary of State 
and to consent to the Regulations being made.  

 

29



 Lawyer Consulted: Elizabeth Culbert, Head of Legal Services  
 Date: 06/07/17 
 
 
 Equalities Implications: 
 
7.5 There are no specific Equalities issues arising from this report. 
 
 Sustainability Implications: 
 
7.6 There are no specific Sustainability issues arising from this report. 
 
 

SUPPORTING DOCUMENTATION 

 
Appendices: 
 
None 
 
Documents in Members’ Rooms 
 
None 
 
Background Documents 
 
GREATER BRIGHTON ECONOMIC BOARD Agenda Item 23 Subject: Transport for the 
South East Proposals Date of Meeting: 31st January 2017 

30



 

GREATER BRIGHTON ECONOMIC 
BOARD 

Agenda Item 8 

 
 

 
 

Subject: Update on Greater Brighton One Public Estate 
Programme 

Date of Meeting: 18 July 2017 

Report of: Chair, Greater Brighton Officer Programme Board 

Contact Officer: 
Name: 

Angela Dymott, Assistant 
Director, Property & 
Design 

Tel: 01273 291450 

 Email: angela.dymott@brighton-hove.gov.uk 

LA(s) affected: All 

 
FOR GENERAL RELEASE 
 
1. PURPOSE OF REPORT AND POLICY CONTEXT 
 
1.1 The purpose of this report is to provide the Greater Brighton Economic Board 

(‘the Board’) with an update on progress in relation to the City Region’s One 
Public Estate Programme. 

 
2. RECOMMENDATIONS:  
 
2.1 That the Board notes the report. 

 
2.2 That the Board nominates a business representative to join the Greater 

Brighton Strategic Property Board. 
 
3. CONTEXT/ BACKGROUND INFORMATION 
 
3.1 The National One Public Estate Programme (‘the National Programme) is a 

pioneering initiative funded by the Cabinet Office Government Property Unit 
(GPU) and delivered in partnership with the Local Government Association 
(LGA).  The Programme is designed to facilitate and enable local authorities 
to work successfully with Government and local agencies on public property 
and land issues through sharing and collaboration.  It has four main 
objectives, to: 
 
1. Create economic growth (new homes, employment floorspace and jobs); 
2. Enable more integrated customer-focused services; 
3. Generate capital receipts, and; 
4. Reduce running costs. 

 
3.2 Local authorities that gain membership to the National Programme receive 

wide-ranging support to develop and deliver property initiatives with 
Government and public sector partners that meet these objectives.  This 
includes: revenue grant funding of up to £500,000 (per funding round); 
access to a pool of experts to provide additional support and capacity in a 
number of areas, from master-planning to business case development and 

31

mailto:Angela.Dymott@brighton-hove.gov.uk


cost evaluation; practical support from the GPU and LGA and; routes to 
senior central and local government experts. 
 

3.3 In April 2016, the GPU and LGA launched an Invitation to Apply to join the 
National Programme to which Greater Brighton responded.  The application 
process comprised two-stages; completion of an Expression of Interest by 06 
May 2016 and, if successful, development of a detailed Services & Assets 
Delivery Plan by 29 July 2016. 
 

3.4 On 14 June 2016, the National Programme advised that Greater Brighton’s 
Expression of Interest had been successful.  The City Region was allocated 
£50,000 capacity funding to support the development of the Greater Brighton 
Services & Assets Delivery Plan (‘the Plan’).  On 19 July 2016, the Board 
agreed that 50% of the capacity funding be used to procure external 
consultants to undertake this work.  The appointment of Marshall Regen Ltd 
was subsequently confirmed. 
 

3.5 The Plan was produced following extensive engagement and consultation 
with the Board’s member organisations and wider partners.  It was presented 
to the Board on 18 October 2016 but, due to its commercially sensitive 
nature, has not been published. 
 

3.6 On 08 November 2016, the City Region received formal confirmation that its 
application had been successful and the City Region was welcomed on to 
the National Programme.  The Greater Brighton One Public Estate 
Programme (the Local Programme) received a 2016/17 funding allocation of 
£280,500 and a further £316,500 was earmarked for 2017/18. 
 

3.7 The funding will enable the provision of robust evidence to support asset 
management decisions, in the form of detailed locality reviews and feasibility, 
viability and master-planning studies.  It will also support the development of 
joint property ventures and fund a dedicated programme management 
resource to support the delivery of the Local Programme. 
 

3.8 Membership to the National Programme was dependant on the City Region 
meeting the following pre-qualification criteria by 31 December 2016: 
 

 Mapping all public sector assets in the partnership area and recording all 
land and property assets owned by the partnership authorities (except social 
housing stock) and public sector partners on the ePIMS Lite system; 

 Providing information on the estimated value of all local authority owned land 
and buildings within the partnership area; 

 Making details of all land and property owned by the partnership publicly 
accessible, including in authorities’ statutory annual reports, and; 

 Establishing and maintaining an effective One Public Estate Board with a 
range of public sector partners. 

 
4. KEY HIGHLIGHTS & NEXT STEPS 
 

PRE-QUALIFICATION CRITERIA 
 
4.1 The Local Programme successfully completed each of the pre-selection 

criteria ahead of the 31 December 2016 deadline. 
 

32



4.2 The partnership has recorded all land and property assets on the ePIMS Lite 
system and has produced an interactive Asset Map.  The Asset Map and 
both the Greater Brighton Partnership Asset List, which includes an initial 
assessment of surplus land, and details of the value of all publicly owned 
property and land assets across the City Region have been published on the 
Brighton & Hove City Council and Greater Brighton websites.  The total value 
of the Local Programme’s combined public sector estate is estimated to be 
approximately £3.5billion. 
 

4.3 On 18 October 2016, the Board agreed the governance arrangements for the 
Local Programme.  The Greater Brighton Strategic Property Board (‘the 
Property Board’) and the Greater Brighton Public Sector Property Group (‘the 
Property Group’) were subsequently established, the latter building on and 
extending the already successful Brighton & Hove Public Sector Property 
Group. 
 

4.4 The Property Board provides direction, oversight and accountability to the 
Local Programme, whilst the Property Group supports delivery at operational 
level.  The Terms of Reference are attached as Appendix 1.  It is anticipated 
that the Terms of Reference for the Property Group will be expanded to 
support the delivery of the Health & Social Care agenda, with property as an 
enabler to Brighton & Hove’s Caring Together Strategy and the Sustainability 
& Transformation Plans.  Due to commercial sensitivities, all meetings of the 
Property Board and Property Group are held in private. 
 

4.5 On 18 October 2016, the Board agreed the appointment of Peter Davies of 
the Shoreham Port Authority and the Coastal West Sussex Board as the 
independent business representative on the Property Board.  Following Peter 
Davies’ retirement in March 2017, the Board is asked to nominate a new 
business representative to join the Property Board. 
 

4.6 Links continue to be strengthened with the both the SPACES and West 
Sussex County Council One Public Estate Programmes, which also cover 
parts of the Greater Brighton area. 
 
PROJECT UPDATES: 
 

4.7 Following a successful recruitment process, the Greater Brighton One Public 
Estate Programme Manager commenced in post on 15 May 2017. 
 

4.8 The Local Programme received the 2016/17 funding allocation on 28 
February 2017.  Brighton & Hove City Council, as the Local Programme’s 
Lead Authority, subsequently disbursed the funding with accompanying 
back-to-back agreements to the delivery bodies.  On 29 June 2017, the 
National Programme confirmed the previously earmarked 2017/18 allocation.  
The release of this funding, which has been delayed as a result of the 
General Election and Purdah period, is expected imminently. 
 

4.9 The projects within the Local Programme are making steady progress, as 
follows: 
 

4.9.1 IMPaCT Hub at Worthing Civic Centre: feasibility work is now complete and 
the project brief for the development of the high-level business case has 
been prepared. 

33



 
4.9.2 Moulsecoomb Neighbourhood Hub, Brighton: the Trust for Developing 

Communities has been commissioned to produce a Neighbourhood Plan for 
Mouslecoomb.  The Neighbourhood plan, which is due for completion in end-
July 2017, will identify priorities for the area that will in turn inform the 
Neighbourhood Hub proposals. 
 

4.9.3 Quebec Barracks, Brighton: high-level design and feasibility work has 
commenced for completion by mid-August 2017. 
 

4.9.4 Preston Barracks Healthcare Hub, Brighton: work on the detailed healthcare 
brief is progressing and is due for completion by end-September 2017.  U+I, 
the developer of the wider Preston Barracks scheme, have begun feasibility 
work in relation to the health content of the scheme using nationally 
recognised advisors, Aitcheson Rafferty.  It is hoped that Aitcheson Rafferty’s 
work will help inform the specification and ultimately the Brighton & Hove 
Clinical Commissioning Group’s commitment to the scale of service 
demanded, following which U+I would look to incorporate the new hub into 
the development proposals. 
 

4.9.5 Brighton General Hospital: the strategic site assessment and options 
appraisal have now been completed and work on the outline business case 
has commenced.  The aspiration is to complete the outline business case by 
the end of the current financial year. 
 

4.9.6 Preston Circus Fire Station, Brighton: the initial design feasibility and cost 
reports have been completed and expressions of interest circulated to public 
sector partners. 
 

4.9.7 Springman House, Lewes: Local Growth Fund funding enabled Lewes 
District Council to purchase the Springman House site, located in the North 
Street Quarter development, in March 2017 to relocate the fire station.  
Lewes District Council is now moving forwards to commission the design and 
construction of the new facility, which will offer future opportunities to work 
with Sussex Police to co-locate blue light services in the town.  It is expected 
that the new fire station will be operational by March 2020. 

 
4.10 Progress is reported to the National Programme on a quarterly basis.  The 

Property Group and Property Board, which meet between 3 and 4 times a 
year, also monitors and oversees progress. 

 
FUTURE FUNDING BID 

 
4.11 The National Programme is expected to launch the next, Phase 6, funding 

call shortly.  At the time of writing, formal communications are still to be 
released but feedback from the National Programme suggests that: 
 

4.11.1 The aim is to launch the call in mid-July 2017 and, subject to Ministerial sign-
off, the Phase 6 Prospectus will be released in the coming weeks.  This has 
been postponed because of the General Election and Purdah period. 
 

4.11.2 The deadline for submitting extensions to existing Services & Assets Delivery 
Plans will likely be early-October 2017 and the National Programme 
anticipates that allocations will be announced in December 2017. 

34



 
4.11.3 The aspiration ‘to get money out the door in the financial year’ remains but 

the National Programme will be flexible about the need to roll-over funding, 
especially as disbursements will likely be made early in the 2018 calendar 
year. 
 

4.11.4 The National Programme intends to allocate all of the remaining approximate 
£7million as part of the Phase 6 funding call. 
 

4.11.5 The National Programme has a desire to create as many new One Public 
Estate partnerships as possible; the aspiration is for 95% partnership 
coverage after Phase 6.  The National Programme has given assurance, 
however, that weak bids from new partnerships will not be given priority over 
strong bids from existing partnerships. 
 

4.11.6 Under the Phase 6 funding call, it is expected that bids can be made for: 
 

 Up to £500,000 revenue grant funding per partnership; 

 Specialist support – the National Programme has a pool of experts that 
provide a range of specialist support that they would provide at no cost, 
negating the need for local procurement exercises and offering the benefit 
of economies of scale.  Information on the associated bidding caps will be 
released with the call but it is anticipated that if such specialist support is 
provided, the value of those services will count towards the £500,000 
revenue grant funding limit per partnership. 

 A “repayable grant”, forward funding for enabling activities to be repaid 
once the associated capital receipts are released.  There is a move 
towards the National Programme becoming self-sustaining over time, 
and; 

 “Deep Dives” into key barriers/blockages. 
 

4.11.7 The National Programme’s four priorities and therefore desired outputs, as 
outlined in Section 3.1 of this report, remain unchanged.  It is expected that 
the Phase 6 funding call will place particular emphasis on 3 national 
priorities: Health and Care Integration; Defence Land, and; Housing.  The 
exact criteria will not be known until the Phase 6 Prospectus is issued. 
 

4.12 The National Programme wants to expand and has submitted a business 
case for future funding, which it is confident will land well with Ministers.  If 
successful, there will be future funding rounds.  It is also likely that the new 
monies will be used to fund strong Phase 6 bids that were unsuccessful only 
because of the competitive nature of the call. 
 

4.13 Potential projects are currently being explored with partners from across the 
Local Programme.  Due to the short timescales, the intention is to use some 
of the remaining £20,000 capacity funding to procure consultancy services to 
support the development of the City Region’s submission.  The aim is to 
produce the draft bid by early-September 2017, to enable full review and 
sign-off by the Property Group at its next meeting on 18 September 2017.  At 
its last meeting, on 25 May 2017, the Property Board devolved authority to 
sign-off the City Region’s final submission to the Chair of the Property Group. 
 

4.14 Due to the likely highly competitive nature of the Phase 6 funding call, advice 
and steer will be sought from the National Programme’s Regional Advisors.  

35



The projects that are most ready and deliverable and that have the greatest 
outputs, as well as partnership focus, will ultimately be included in the 
Greater Brighton submission. 
 

4.15 Further details of the City Region’s Phase 6 submission will be provided to 
the Board at its next meeting on 07 November 2017. 

 
MARKETING & COMMUNICATIONS 

 
4.16 As reported to the Board on 18 October 2017, £5,000 of the capacity funding 

has been allocated towards to delivery of communications activities for the 
Local Programme.  This work, which is being led by Adur & Worthing 
Councils, encompasses the production of newsletter updates to the Local 
Programme’s wider members, as listed in Appendix 2, as and when required.  
The work also includes the production of an annual report and the 2016/17 
Annual Report will be submitted to the Board at its next meeting on 07 
November 2017. 

 
5.  CONCLUSION  
 
5.1 Through the Local Programme, public bodies from across Greater Brighton 

are coming together to use their property and land assets to both improve 
how public sector services are delivered and to act as a catalyst to boost 
economic growth, delivering new homes, employment floorspace and jobs.  
In so doing, the Local Programme will support the City Region to accelerate 
and surpass the delivery of its planned supply that totals 22,500 homes of 
mixed types and tenures and 455,000sqm employment floorspace over the 
next 10 years. 
 

5.2 As demonstrated in this report, the Local Programme is making steady 
progress.  In addition, potential projects for the upcoming Phase 6 funding 
call are currently being explored with partners, which will further expand the 
Programme’s scope and outputs. 

 
6. FINANCIAL & OTHER IMPLICATIONS: 

 
Financial Implications: 

 
6.1 The City Region has been allocated £50,000 capacity funding to support the 

development of the Greater Brighton Services & Assets Delivery Plan (‘the 
Plan’).  £25,000 of the capacity funding has been used to procure external 
consultants to undertake this work and a further £5,000 has been allocated to 
support communications activities for the Local Programme.  £20,000 has 
been set aside to provide consultancy services to support the development of 
the City Region’s future submissions, in the form of extensions to the Plan, 
including to the upcoming Phase 6 funding call. 

 
A total of £597,000 funding has been identified through the Greater Brighton 
One Public Estate Programme (the Local Programme) with £280,500 
received in 2016/17 and a further allocation of £316,500 earmarked for 
2017/18. The funding will enable the provision of robust evidence to support 
asset management decisions and will also support the development of joint 
property ventures and resources to support the delivery of the Local 
Programme. The funding for 2016/17 has been disbursed to the relevant 

36



delivery bodies and supports the projects detailed in paragraph 4.9 above. 
The funding for 2017/18 is due shortly within this financial year and will be 
allocated to the delivery bodies accordingly. 
 
The National Programme is expected to launch Phase 6 funding call during 
the summer of 2017. A maximum of £500,000 per partnership of revenue 
grant can be applied for. An update on the bid and projects that the funding 
will potentially support will be reported back to this Board in due course.  

 
 Finance Officer Consulted: Rob Allen, Principal Accountant  
 Date: 05/07/17 
 

Legal Implications: 
 
6.2 There are no legal implications arising directly from this report. The legal 

implications of each project will be considered by the bodies responsible for 
delivering them.  

   
 Lawyer Consulted: Alice Rowland, Head of Commercial Law 
 Date: 03/07/17 
 
 Equalities Implications: 
 
6.3 There are no equalities implications arising directly from this report.  The 

equalities implications will be addressed on a project-by-project basis. 
 
 Sustainability Implications: 
 
6.4 The One Public Estate Programme is aimed at supporting partnerships to 

take a strategic approach to asset management.  This will enable 
partnerships to get the most from their collective assets, creating 
opportunities to reduce running costs, generate capital receipts, create more 
integrated and customer-focused services and to grow the economy by 
unlocking surplus sites for new homes, employment floorspace and jobs.  In 
so doing, the Programme will create more sustainable services, public sector 
bodies and economies. 

 
Any Other Significant Implications: 

 
6.5 None. 
 
 

SUPPORTING DOCUMENTATION 

 
Appendices: 
 
1. Terms of Reference for Greater Brighton Strategic Property Board and Greater 

Brighton Public Sector Property Group 
2. Appendix Two: Greater Brighton One Public Estate Programme Members 
 
Documents in Members’ Rooms 
 
None. 
 

37



Background Documents 
 
None. 
 
  

38



Appendix One A: 

 

Terms of Reference 

Greater Brighton Strategic Property Group 
 

1. Purpose 

 
1.1 The Greater Brighton Strategic Property Board (“the Board”) brings together 

senior officer representatives from local, regional and national public sector 

partners to take a strategic approach to the City Region’s combined public 

estate, to maximise its efficiency and effectiveness.  The City Region 

encompasses the administrative boundaries of Adur District Council, Brighton & 

Hove City Council, Lewes District Council, Mid Sussex District Council and 

Worthing Borough Council. 

 
1.2 This work is branded the Greater Brighton One Public Estate Programme (“the 

Programme”) and is part of the National One Public Estate Programme (“the 

National Programme”). 

 
1.3 The Board is a consultative group that enables early engagement on planned 

disposals, to secure the best future use of public sector assets.  This will include 

identifying opportunities to meet the following objectives: 

 Creating economic growth (new homes, employment space and jobs), in line with 

local priorities; 

 Transforming public services, by developing more integrated, customer-focused 

services; 

 Reducing running costs, and; 

 Generating capital receipts. 

 
1.4 The Board will support the value enhancement and promotion of Government-

owned assets in the City Region, taking a central role in shaping the policy and 

decisions for the disposal and reinvestment of these assets to maximise impact 

on economic and housing growth. 

 
2. Functions 

 

2.1 The Board will: 

 

2.1.1 Oversee and monitor implementation of the Greater Brighton Services and 

Asset Delivery Plan, as submitted to the National Programme in July 2016; 

 

2.1.2 Develop, oversee and manage a ‘live’ pipeline of publically owned assets and 

assist with the development and publication of a robust Land Register of public 

sector assets and surplus sites, bringing together existing data and sourcing 

new data from public bodies across the City Region to ensure early visibility of 

39



proposed disposal routes amongst all partners; 

 

2.1.3 Support the integration of Government departmental estate disposal 

programmes into the planned estate programme for the City Region; 

 

2.1.4 Ensure effective communications with, and the active engagement of, all 

organisations in the Programme; 

 

2.1.5 Undertake analysis and assessment of assets in the pipeline (taking into 

account existing analysis, intelligence and plans (including Local Plans)) to 

identify opportunities and barriers and, based on the finding, make 

recommendations to the asset owners in line with local priorities; 

 

2.1.6 Develop and aid submission of future funding applications to the National 

Programme and other similar schemes, as and when calls open; 

 

2.1.7 Make recommendations regarding the development of new public estate 

delivery models, such as city investment funds and joint property vehicles; 

 

2.1.8 Develop productive relationships with a range of prospective investors and 

developers to enable the swift disposal and development of surplus property; 

 

2.1.9 Propose performance targets, for example in relation to reductions in the overall 

operating costs and the carbon footprint of the City Region’s combined public 

estate, and monitor progress towards achievement of these; 

 

2.1.10 Direct and monitor the work-plan of the Greater Brighton Public Sector Property 

Group (“GBPSPB”), responsible for delivering the plans and strategies of the 

Board, and propose any additional resource requirements.  The Terms of 

Reference for the GBPSPB are attached as Appendix One; 

 

2.1.11 Raise awareness of, and act as ambassadors for, the work of Board and ensure 

that the identified priorities of the Board are reflected in the property related 

strategies and policies of the organisations represented on the Board; 

 

2.1.12 Share good practice across the organisations represented on the Board and 

with the National Programme, and; 

 

2.1.13 Report to the Greater Brighton Economic Board (“GBEB”) bi-annually or more 

frequently if required, [including the escalation of any risks to successful 

delivery]. 

 
2.2 The Board will be supported by a Programme Manager, provided by the 

Accountable Body or otherwise as agreed.  

 
3. Membership 

40



 
3.1 The member organisations of the Programme are listed, by sector, as Appendix 

Two. 

 
3.2 To ensure the effective operation of the Board, it will comprise a maximum of 

seventeen senior officer representatives from the Programme, plus one 

independent business representative appointed by GBEB, one advisor from the 

National Programme and one advisor from the Government Property Unit, as 

follows: 

 
Sector 
 

Representative Organisation 

Local Authority 
 

Geoff Raw 
 

Brighton & Hove City Council 

Alex Bailey 
 

Adur & Worthing Councils 

Robert Cottrill Lewes District Council 
 

Kathryn Hall 
 

Mid Sussex District Council 

Health 
 

Neil Cook Coastal West Sussex Clinical 
Commissioning Group 
 

Pippa Ross-Smith Brighton & Hove Clinical 
Commissioning Group 
 

Gillian Fairfield Brighton & Sussex University 
Hospitals NHS Trust 

Emergency Services 
 

Mark Streater Sussex Police 
 

Nigel Cusack East Sussex Fire & Rescue Service 

Education 
 

Nick Juba Greater Brighton Metropolitan College 
 

Debra Humphris University of Brighton 
 

Brighton & Hove Strategic Housing Partnership 
 

Martin Reid Brighton & Hove City Council 

Greater Brighton Public Sector Property Group 
 

Angela Dymott Brighton & Hove City Council 

Local Enterprise Partnership Jonathan Sharrock 
 

Coast to Capital 

Business TBC TBC 
 

Government Departments Christopher Moore / 
Paul Shorten 
 

Homes & Communities Agency 
 

Ron Francis Department for Work & Pension 
 

National One Public Estate Programme 
 

Ben Stoneham 
 

One Public Estate Programme 

TBC Government Property Unit 
 

 
3.3 Officer representatives have been drawn from those organisations most 

impacted by the Greater Brighton Services and Asset Delivery Plan work-plan.  

The scale of asset ownership has also had influence. 

 

41



3.4 The Board will review officer representation on an annual basis, to ensure that it 

continues to reflect the priority areas of the Board and GBEB. 

 
3.5 Subject to the agenda and projects under discussion, representatives from the 

wider member organisations of the Programme may be invited to attend Board 

meetings.  Individuals such as external or technical advisers may also be invited 

to attend for all or any part of a Board meeting, as and when 

appropriate/necessary. 

 
3.6 Private owners with significant brownfield landholdings may be invited to attend 

for all or any part of a Board meeting, as and when appropriate/necessary. 

 
4. Confidentiality & Declarations of Interest 

 
4.1 Due to commercial sensitivities, all Board meetings will be held in private. 

 
4.2 Information received and discussed by the Board must be treated as confidential 

in so far as the Freedom of Information acts permit. 

 
4.3 Each member on the Board will register any potential conflicts of interest.  It is 

the responsibility of Board members to inform the Chair of any changes to 

interests which may need be declared. 

 
5. Accountable Body 

 
5.1 Brighton & Hove City Council shall act as the Accountable Body for the 

Programme. 

 
6. Chair and Sub-Chair 

 
6.1 The Board shall be chaired by the Chief Executive of the Accountable Body. 

 
6.2 If the Chair is unable to attend a Board meeting, the Board shall elect a substitute 

from the attending representatives. 

 
7. Frequency of Meetings and Secretariat  

 
7.1 The Board shall meet on a quarterly basis, from its inception in October 2016. 

 
7.2 The frequency of Board meetings can be changed to suit the changing workload. 

 
7.3 Meetings will be hosted by the Accountable Body with secretariat support 

provided by the Programme Manager. 

 
8. Principles 

 
8.1 The Board commits to the following principles: 

 
8.1.1 Working Principles: 

 Commitment – members will commit resources to the mutual endeavour. 

42



 Clarity – members are clear about who is doing what. 

 Mutuality – understanding our common purpose with mutual benefit for each partner. 

 Openness – being prepared to raise issues concerning the quality of the working 

relationship. 

 Confidentiality– respecting that on occasion property negotiations may require 

organisations to keep information in confidence. 

 Added value – quantifying the added value of doing this together rather than doing it 

alone. 

 Fairness – members will not seek to profit from each other. 

 
8.2 Financial Principles: 

 Partners will each bear their own costs in the development and agreement of options 

including, but not limited to surveying, planning, legal and options appraisal costs. 

 No partner will attempt to ransom another. 

 The share of set up costs (capital or revenue) will be agreed prior to the 

commencement of works or occupation, including agreement on the sharing of risk and 

contingency. 

 Occupancy costs will be reflective of usage and any capital / asset contributions, 

sharing costs without any party seeking to profit. 

 Savings will be reflective of past and future usage (as distinct from an agreed sharing of 

savings), therefore providing a sustainable basis for a long term partnership. 

 The responsibility for exit costs will reside with the terminating party. 

 Each party will provide open book cost information, including any anticipated or 

reasonably foreseeable future costs. 

 Transactions at less than market value can take place at partner’s discretion or where 

social benefits are deemed by all relevant parties to be sufficient to offset abated values 

and where permitted under stakeholders own financial controls.  Best consideration will 

need to be obtained and if not justified under General Consents of section 123. 

 

9. Reporting and Accountability 

 
9.1 The GBPSPB shall report to the Board and may refer matters to it for 

consideration and determination. 

 
9.2 The Board will report to the GBEB on progress on a bi-annual basis.  This will 

include the submission of an annual report at the close of each financial year. 

 
9.3 The GBEB shall act as arbiter in situations where there are competing demands. 

 
9.4 Implementation of the Greater Brighton Services and Asset Delivery Plan will be 

reported to the National Programme, in accordance with their monitoring and 

reporting requirements.  This process will be led by the Accountable Body. 

 
9.5 The Board will provide monitoring, communication and performance reports and 

an annual report to each member organisation of the Programme.  These reports 

will be in a readily accessible format to facilitate transparency and accountability.  

 

43



9.6 It is not intended that organisations delegate ownership decisions on their 

existing assets to the Board. The Board will be established as a local strategic 

assets forum.  Formal decision making on specific property assets and 

transactions affecting them will remain with the party who owns the interest in 

question. 

 
 

10. Review and Variation of Terms of Reference 

 
10.1 The Board shall keep these Terms of Reference under review to ensure that the 

Board’s purpose is given full effect. 

 
10.2 These Terms of Reference may only be varied with the approval of GBEB and 

each member organisation of the Programme. 

 

End. 

 

44



 

 
 

Appendix One B: 

Terms of Reference 

Greater Brighton Public Sector Property Group 
 
Mandate for the Public Sector Property Group from Brighton & Hove Connected 
City Management Board & the Greater Brighton Strategic Property Board 
 
Our aim is to maximise the opportunities for collaboration related to public sector 
property, land and assets to reduce overall costs, support strategic priorities, improve 
customer service and support service development.   
 
Within that, our goals are: 

1. To progress more creative ways of making best strategic use of the full public 
sector asset and property portfolio 

2. To strengthen relationships with partner organisations and to promote best 
practise when undertaking shared working 

 
Our objectives are to: 

 Aid in the embedding of commissioning and provider development 

 Promote sharing relevant information to partner organisations 

 Provide opportunities to deliver financial benefits through sharing services 
where possible 

 Grow best practise and skills 

 Develop closer working relationships across partner organisations 

 Reduce duplication among different organisations 

 Note the possible risks involved in setting up shared services and look at the 
best ways in which to deal with these 

 
We are tasked by the City Management Board & the Greater Brighton Strategic 
Property Board to: 

 Work as partner organisations to improve the delivery of shared services 

 Promote best practise within the city region 

 Provide better value for money across partner organisations 

 Work collaboratively with other work streams (Finance, Human Resources 
and Communications) to deliver better outcomes through joint working. 

 
We are accountable to the City Management Board of Brighton & Hove Connected and 
the Greater Brighton Strategic Property Board in demonstrating how we achieve our 
objectives. 
 
We are jointly accountable to each other for delivering our agreed actions. 
 
 
 
Membership 

 

 Brighton & Hove City Council (B&HCC – Chair) 

 Adur & Worthing Council 

45



 Lewes District Council 

 Mid Sussex District Council 

 

 Sussex Community NHS Foundation Trust (SCFT) 

 Sussex Partnership NHS Foundation Trust (SPFT) 

 Brighton & Sussex University Hospitals NHS Trust (BSUH) 

 Brighton & Hove Clinical Commissioning Group (B&HCCG) 

 

 Department for Work & Pensions (DWP) 

 

 University of Brighton 

 University of Sussex 

 City College 

 

 East Sussex Fire & Rescue Service (ESF&R) 

 Sussex Police 

 South East Coast Ambulance Service (SECAMB) 

 

 Strategic Property Asset Collaboration in East Sussex (SPACES) 

 

End. 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

46



Appendix Two: Greater Brighton One Public Estate Programme Members 

 

Local Authorities 

 Brighton & Hove City Council 

 Adur District Council 

 Worthing Borough Council 

 Lewes District Council 

 Mid Sussex District Council 

 

Health Sector 

 Brighton & Hove Clinical Commissioning Group 

 Coastal West Sussex Clinical Commissioning Group 

 Brighton & Sussex University Hospitals NHS Trust 

 Sussex Community NHS Foundation Trust 

 Sussex Partnership NHS Trust 

 

Government Departments  

 Ministry of Defence 

 Department for Work and Pensions 

 Homes and Communities Agency  

 Highways England 

 NHS (Southern Regional Lead for NHS)  

 NHS Property 

 Network Rail 

 

Emergency Services 

 East Sussex Fire & Rescue Service 

 West Sussex Fire & Rescue Service 

 Sussex Police 

 South East Coast Ambulance Service (SECAMBS) 

 

Education Sector 

 University of Brighton 

 University of Sussex 

 Greater Brighton Metropolitan College 

 Worthing College 

 Sussex Downs College 

 Plumpton College 

 

Brighton & Hove Strategic Housing Partnership 

Coast to Capital Local Enterprise Partnership 

South Downs National Park Authority 

47



48


	Agenda
	3 Minutes of the previous meeting
	5 Greater Brighton City Region Workshop
	Greater Brighton City Region Workshop APX. n 1

	6 Update on Investment programme
	7 Rail South
	8 One Public Estate

